COMBROKE PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of the Parish Council held via Zoom on Monday 22nd March 2021 at 7.30pm

Present

Stephanie Connah (SC) Nathan Griffiths (NG) Tim Goodhead (TG) Jo Price (JP) Brenda Rayson (BR) Georgina Lowe (Clk), Clerk DCIIr Chris Mills (CM)

Members of the Public: 0

Chairman's Announcement

To note CCIIr Williams last meeting before he retires, and to formally thank him for his contributions to our meetings and support over the years

1. Apologies

CCIIr Chris Williams (CW)

2. Acceptance of Apologies

N/A - All Parish Councillors were in attendance

3. Declarations of Interest

None.

4. Public Representation

None.

5. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on the 25th January 2021 had been circulated. Proposed TG, seconded JP and

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

6. Chairman's Report and Other Reports for Information Only

- a. Chairman Electoral Review The local Government Boundary Commission is reviewing the electoral wards across Stratford on Avon District with the intention of increasing the number of wards from 36 to 41. An initial Public Consultation is running until May and a further consultation will take place late summer once the Commission has drawn up proposals.
- b. Clerk No report

7. District Councillor's Report

i. Stratford District Council working together with Warwick District Council - To create a single statutory South Warwickshire Council covering all the activities currently carried out by Stratford-on-Avon District Council and Warwick District Council by 1 April 2024. A report by Deliotte, commissioned by the two District Councils, concludes that such a merger would result in savings of £4.6million over five years. This was supported by the majority of the Councillors. However, it was unanimously agreed with all Councillors that the proposal to work with Warwick District Council must at all costs go out to public consultation.

ii. **Funding for New Secondary Schools** - 3 of Warwickshire's Secondary Schools are celebrating after being successful in their bids as part of the Government's School Rebuilding Programme.

Kineton High, Southam College & Hartshill School will all undergo major rebuild & development. Read more:

https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/news/article/1783/warwickshire-county-council-celebrates-securing-funding-for-three-new-secondary-schools

iii. **Voting Safely at this Year's Elections** - On Thursday 6 May 2021 residents in Stratford-on-Avon District will go to the polls to have their say on who represents them at Warwickshire County Council (WCC) and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC).

We are putting arrangements in place to help you stay safe at the polling station; you can expect many of the measures you have become used to in shops and banks over recent months, such as hand sanitiser, floor markings and face masks. But you also have the option to apply to vote by post or by proxy. You need to be registered to vote in order to have a say at the elections – the easiest way to register is online at www.gov.uk/register-to-vote or for more information please visit: www.stratford.gov.uk/elections/

iv. **Broadband** - Stratford District Council has been applying pressure on Government and DCMS regarding the provision of Broadband Connectivity for Rural areas.

The Government have issued this consultation document. https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/improving-broadband-for-very-hard-to-reach-premises

There is a survey for groups / business / residents / individuals to complete stating their own particular

issues. https://dcms.eu.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_bEMHlvftH6oiYjc

Anyone requiring assistance in completing the survey should email david.platts@stratford-dc.gov.uk

v. **Warwickshire Carers -** The NHS in Coventry and Warwickshire is calling for carers in receipt of the Carers Allowance to book their coronavirus vaccination. These eligible people can book their vaccination via the national booking website. You can do this by visiting NHS – Book or manage your coronavirus vaccination or by calling 119 free of charge, anytime between 7am and 11pm – seven days a

People who are registered as carers with their GP will be called for a vaccination by their local GP led vaccination centre. This is a phased approach to the vaccination process. It must be stressed that if you are caring for someone and do not receive a Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) payment currently, please be patient, your GP or the NHS will be in contact with you in due course.

Anyone who does provide a caring responsibility for a friend, neighbour or family members is being reminded that they can register their caring status with the Carers Trust (Heart of England) or with their GP.

If you are a young carer under 18 years you can also access support from Warwickshire Young Carers.

8. County Councillor's Report

CCIIr Williams' Report is attached to these minutes.

9. Planning

9.1. Pending Fossedene Manor, Fosse Way 20/02141/FUL

Conversion of an existing shed to Holiday Lets and construction of a new building incorporating Stables and Car-ports (including the introduction of a new access route to and from this building).

Amendments to the scheme have been made -these withdraw the construction of the new building incorporating stables and car-ports.

9.2. Appeal Dismissed Rowan House, Compton Fields APP/J3720/W/20/3261274 Change of use from paddock land to residential garden

9.3. Granted 18 Combrook 20/03262/FUL & 20/03266/LBC

Replacement of rear kitchen/conservatory extension and realignment of rear boundary wall.

10. Census 2021

Over the next few weeks Census Field Officers will be visiting those properties where the Census has not been completed yet. Warwickshire Trading Standards have highlighted that scammers may be attempting to use the Census to perpetrate doorstep, telephone and online scams

11. Chestnut tree update

The Clerk reported an alternative tree surgeon had now been contacted for a second quotation. The gentleman had been recommended by Benchmark Grounds Maintenance. BR Discussions remain ongoing with the County Highways team.

12. Financial Administration

Invoices were presented, and payment approved for:
CPRE annual donation £36.00
Clerks Oct-Mar Salary £653.06 + £49.99 Internet Security Renewal
HMRC £16.00
Zurich Insurance Combroke Village Hall Contents Insurance £346.83

13. Lanes and Drainage

13.1 County Highways Repair and Improvement

Blocked gully on Church Hill has been jetted.

County Highways have yet to make a site visit to address the deepening channels at edge of road to the Fosse.

Having surveyed the potholes outside Hillside and Orchard Cottages, TG suggested the road had fallen away at the side and may need making up to the wall.

Footbridge – no further report, awaiting confirmed works to commence once replacement posts have been delivered.

TG

13.2 Proposed Gateway at West Entrance to the Village

No further report, as per December's Minutes

14. Parking

It was acknowledged there was still a problem but agreed the PC should continue to monitor and review at the end of April once lockdown had eased.

Advice is still to be sought from County Highways; the proposed questionnaire will be put on hold until further notice.

ALL

15. Combroke Climate Change Club

To note the Spring newsletter is near completion with features to include environmentally friendly gardens and 'No Mow May'; meeting date to follow.

SC

16. Pollution

The final draft had been circulated prior to the meeting (thanks were recorded to SC); SC / agreed amends and additions to be made prior to distribution.

17. Councillors' Reports and Items for Future Agendas

Election Arrangements May one of SDC Officers managing election arrangements made contact regarding Covid Safety of the Village Hall for use as polling station. There was a further problem for SDC of finding staffing volunteers to cover the smaller venues. The suggestion was to offer residents a postal vote. After phone consultation with Lesley Goodhead (from a Village Hall Committee perspective) and including Tim at the same time, the decision was made not to use the village hall on this occasion. We have all since received letters explaining the matter and indicating we will be assigned to Kineton for voting with a reference made to the alternative of arranging a postal vote – CM to provide postal vote application forms for distribution

Gigabit Broadband Voucher Scheme launches on 8 April with vouchers worth up to £1500 for residential properties and £3,500 for businesses. `groups of 2 or more neighbouring properties install fibre as a group project using the vouchers towards the cost. The owners must be prepared to pay the difference between actual cost of installation and the voucher available and to commit to signing up to receive the enhanced service from the supplier for at least 12 months. When the scheme launches it will be possible to enter postcodes/addresses to identify eligible properties.

Solar Together initiative – group buying for solar panels and battery storage; future agenda item

18. Dates of Next Parish Council Meetings:

Monday 10th May 2021

The meeting closed at 9:28pm

Combroke Parish Council 22nd March 2021 County Councillor's Report

Budget 2021/22

On 8^{th} February the Council set the budget for 2021/22. This time last year the Council set a budget which put us in a financially secure position, had good reserves and austerity was a word from the past. Now that seems a life-time away and the Warwickshire has changed. On 25^{th} March 2020 the crisis had taken hold and we went into lockdown most of us expecting that the problem would be over in 4-5 months. The government has helpfully pumped significant amounts of money into Warwickshire to support the economy and into WCC in the form of Covid emergency funds. This support was both vital and welcome but despite the support of central government our overall income has dropped.

As a result, extra funding for Adult Social Care provision will be through a 3% precept on our Council Tax over two years. We have elected to take 1% in 21/22 and 2% in the following year. This will be on top of the 1.99% already budgeted for in last year's MTFS. So, for the year 21/22 we intend to increase the Council Tax by 2.99% in total which represents an increase of 86p per week on an average Band D property.

One word describes this Budget – Recovery. We are confident of our approach which will mean that Warwickshire's communities and economy will be able to recover more quickly. Here are some of the major items we are funding in the budget:

- 1. £9.1m into our Children's Social Care Services;
- 2. £8.2 million to protect the Elderly and Vulnerable;
- 3. £3.8 million to continue support for children with disabilities;
- 4. £1.5 million into Home to School Transport;

5. £1.3 million to offset the lower interest return on our investments We have a plan for an even better Warwickshire in the future. This includes:

- 1. Leading the COVID recovery across Warwickshire Distributing millions of pounds across Warwickshire in grant funding to hundreds of local businesses.
- 2. Protecting Warwickshire's most vulnerable residents Throughout the pandemic the Conservartive-led County Council has protected and supported our most vulnerable residents.
- 3. Giving our children the best start in life By working closely with Warwickshire's nurseries and schools.
- 4. Building safe, vibrant, local communities throughout Warwickshire The last year has been tough for everyone but local communities have come together to support each other.
- 5. Millions more in funding for Warwickshire's vital infrastructure We are investing in our essential services to ensure Warwickshire remains the best place to live and work.
- 6. Facing the challenge of climate change Warwickshire Conservatives are committed to helping make our county a greener and more environmentally friendly place to live, work and raise a family.

After a lengthy debate the Conservative proposal for the next year was passed by a majority of 35. This proposed that the increase next year should be set at 2.99% for the Warwickshire County Council budget allocation

Parish Council Guidance

The pre-election period for the 2021 Council Elections in May. Council elections commence on 19th March 2021 and will end at the close of Poll on 6th May 2021. This period is known as being in Purdah.

During this period the County Council will continue to operate on a business as usual basis but will avoid matters which are potentially politically contentious. This means that the number of formal public meetings will be kept to a minimum necessary for the County Council to fulfil its functions. The County Council will meet on 16th March 2021 when a full council meeting will be held.

School Funding Great News for Kineton High School

Three of Warwickshire's Secondary Schools are celebrating after being successful in their bids as part of the Government's School Rebuilding Programme.

Kineton High, Southam College and Hartshill School will all undergo major rebuild and development at their sites. An investment of around £60million has been secured for these three schools via this programme.

The work will be funded and project-managed by the Department of Education. Warwickshire County Council is facilitating the delivery of the rebuilds, which will enable expected progress at each school to be seen within the next 12 months.

Covid-19 Update 19th March 2021

The significant increases in testing for children with the return of schools has resulted in an increase in our infection rates, which is disappointing but not unexpected. This clearly demonstrates that we must all remain vigilant in spite of the huge success of the vaccine rollout. The positive news is that hospital numbers have decreased significantly so the vaccine is having a very welcome impact in terms of the seriousness of disease amongst cases.

The figures over the last seven days are up to 75/100,000 from 45 last week, but the over 60's rate is down to 34/100,000 (48 last week) (with 14 cases over the last seven days) – which when compared to other divisions in Warwickshire for all ages is Nuneaton & Bedworth 40/100,000, North Warwickshire 65/100,000, Warwick 12/100,000 and Rugby 15/100,000. So Stratford area now has the highest case rates across the county and according to the Director of Public Health for Warwickshire this is due to spikes in a school plus an outbreak at a large car dealership.

Whilst the schools are doing a great job to keep pupils in bubbles during the school day, a key issue which is difficult to manage is after school as pupils leave school and mingle with their friends etc. The messages coming from Public Health Warwickshire (PHW) is therefore for families and those in the workplace to get tested twice a week, even if you have been vaccinated.

Home testing kits for those without displaying symptoms are being distributed to schools for pupils, can be ordered online or by calling 119 and PHW hopes these will soon be available for collection for residents from the lateral flow testing centre in Stratford and Warwick. The home testing service is still available to everyone with COVID-19 symptoms, and can still be accessed through the <a href="https://example.com/home-testing-te

On a more positive note, the situation regarding SWFT Hospital Beds continues to improve and there are now 6 (17) confirmed cases of COVID-19 and there is 1 (4) patient in ICU (figures in brackets are from 13 March). Capacity levels have slightly increased with 81 unoccupied general and acute beds but the occupancy levels are now 79% with an increase of non-Covid patients for elective surgery etc.

Sadly, the cumulative deaths across Stratford District have increased again by three over the last week and now number 136 from the start of this second wave (28th August 2020) 37 occurring in care homes, 88 in hospital, one in a hospice and nine at home and one in a communal establishment, out of a total of 819 all cause deaths in the district for this new second wave period.

The cumulative total of deaths across Warwickshire for Wave 2 has now increased to 634 from 620 last week within a total of 3405 all cause deaths. The cumulative total of Covid-19 deaths in Stratford district is 304 since the start of the pandemic and in Warwickshire 1234.

The locally led Lateral Flow Testing facility for people WITHOUT coronavirus symptoms in Stratford area has now carried out 20,727 tests with 79 positive results.

County Elections 6th May 2021

I am sad to say that after 22 years' service at both County and District Councils, I will not be standing for re-election. As you are aware I am still undergoing chemotherapy treatment for the foreseeable future and not enjoying the best of health.

I have much enjoyed working with Combroke Parish Council, will miss the regular meetings and send my best wishes for the future to all residents. I will not be joining you at your meeting for which I apologise but should you have any queries or issues that I can help you with please do not hesitate to contact me by email and I will reply as soon as I am able.

Cllr Chris Williams
Member for Kineton and Red Horse Division
chriswilliams@warwickshire.gov.uk
21.03.21.